CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL
Agenda Staff Report

MEETING DATE
March 7, 2017

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER

TO: Mayor Benetti and City Councilors
FROM: Jim Hossley, Public Works Director

THROUGH: Rodger Craddock, City Manager

ISSUE: Discussion of Street Repair/Restoration Projects for Fiscal Year Ending 2017

SUMMARY:

The Mayor and Councilors have requested that the City pave Golden Avenue in front of the Post
Office between 4" and 7™ Streets. Cost will depend upon the level of repair or restoration applied to
the project as well the need to replace City wastewater and/or storm pipes.

Public Works staff recommends the City also move forward on repair of Coos River Highway where
slope failure has caused the outside (north edge) of the street surface to drop several inches.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Provide staff with direction regarding the level of repair/restoration for Golden Avenue. For both the
Coos River Highway and Golden Avenue projects, staff will bring forward the engineering design
contracts (if needed) and the construction contracts for Council approval at future regular Council

meetings.
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At my request, Rick prepared three different options regarding level of street repair for Council
consideration. One for as cheap as you can get, patch & overlay, with a 7-10-year life expectancy,
another with using Best Management Practices (BMP), with an 18-20-year life expectancy, and the
other, re-constructing the street back to new condition (new curb & gutter, sidewalks, driveways,
ADA ramps, aggregate and Asphalt paving), with a 25-year life expectancy.

Number 1 is relatively inexpensive and consists of patching and overlay. Because it does not
replace the subgrade below the pavement, the new surface could see surface cracking within a year
and resulting in the street surface looking like it does today within 7 to 10 years.

Number 2 uses BMP including cold plane removal, application of pavement fabric, asphalt leveling,
place a 3-inch overlay from 4% to 5" Street, place a 2-inch overlay from 5% Street to 7t" Street, and
replace 2-driveways. The use of the pavement fabric should help retard the reflection of underlying
cracks in the underlying concrete. Eventually the cracks will reflect up to the surface, however it
may be several years.

Number 3 is re-constructing the street back to new condition (remove existing concrete and asphalt,
construct new curb & gutter, new sidewalks, driveways, ADA ramps, 10-inches of aggregate base
and 3-inches of asphalt). This street has a life expectancy of 25 years unless properly maintained
with surface rejuvenation products (e.g. slurry seal) which will extend the life of the street. This
project would also require engineering design.

None of these options include repair to the existing drainage system. We are attempting to
determine the condition of the existing storm drain pipe, however this time of year, high tides and
rainfall have made it difficult to see the pipe using the TV camera. Chances are good that it should
be replaced.

Another street project needs immediate attention. The north edge of the westbound lane of Coos
River Highway has slumped due to slope failure. The road is in need of repair to ensure the road
remains open to 2-way traffic. Work would include replacement of a culvert pipe, installation of
drainage control on the north side of the street, grinding off the top 2 to 4 inches of pavement, and
repaving with 2 to 4 inches of asphalt. The length of the repair is approximately 200 linear feet.
This repair will not alleviate the slope stability problem and the it will fail again in the future. Staffs
hope is that controlling surface drainage flow into the road bed will slow future slope failures.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS:

The Golden Street project cost estimates depend upon the scope of work to be completed. The
cost estimate for option 1 is approximately $50,000. The cost estimate for option 2 is approximately
$75,000. The cost estimate for option 3 is approximately $270,000. Option 3 would also require
some engineering support which will range from 10% to 20% of the construction cost. The cost for
all options do not include drainage improvements or repairs.

Staff estimates that the cost for the repair to Coos River Highway to be approximately $200,000.
This includes the cost for drainage system repairs.

Funds for the projects will come from Fund 16, the Street Improvement Fund. The source of the

money to be used for both projects will be the State of Oregon Surface Transportation Program
funds.
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